THE SEPTEMBER 2006 MONTHLY MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ELECTION COMMISSION​ERS OF THE CITY OF PEORIA WAS HELD IN THE COMMISSION OFFICE AT 542 SW ADAMS ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2006.

PRESENT:
J. Martin Lawless, Chairman



Mary E. Harkrader, Vice-Chairman




Camille M. Gibson, Secretary



Jeanette L. Mitzelfelt, Executive Director



Rebecca A. Kelley, Assistant Executive Director

 ABSENT:
Robert G. Day Jr., Attorney

GUESTS:
Phillip Salzer, Peoria County Board Member; Kelly Newman; Earma Bailey; Helen King; Almelia Nickels; Jackie Petty, Vice Chairperson - Peoria County Democrat Party;  Pearl Taylor; Jason Ross; Jewell Hardimon; Johnnie Hardimon, Jr.; Thomas  Bride, Peoria County Election Administrator; Tonya Koonz - WCBU.

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Lawless at approximately 4:00 p.m.

Vice Chairman Harkrader request​ed that the minutes of August 5, 2006 be corrected by changing “central county” to “central count” in the last sentence of the second paragraph.  She further made a motion to approve the minutes of August 5, 2006 as corrected.  Seconded by Secretary Gibson.  Motion passed unanimously.  Chairman Lawless made a motion to approve the bills for the month of August 2006.  Seconded by Secretary Gibson.  Motion passed unanimously.    

HART INTERCIVIC VOTING EQUIPMENT

Executive Director Mitzelfelt reported that the retrofit and update to the voting equipment was completed.  She also stated that acceptance testing had been completed and 216 of the 220 voting machines were accepted​ and four failed due to 103 communication errors.
Ms. Mitzelfelt said the Hart InterCivic contract stated that the PBOE was to pay 70% of the contract price after a successful election and a successful acceptance test.  The  remaining 10% of the contract price was to be paid after Hart provided and installed a certified cumulative voting program.  It also provided that if Hart did not provide such a program, Hart would pay a penalty of $40,000 to the PBOE.

Secretary Gibson made a motion to pay Hart 70% of the contract price as per the terms of the contract.  Seconded by Vice Chairman Harkrader.  Approved by a roll call vote.  Yeas: Commissioners Harkrader and Gibson.  Nays:  Commissioner Lawless.  

CUMULATIVE PROGRAM

Ms. Mitzelfelt referred to a memorandum from Attorney Day.  The memorandum indicated that Attorney Day spoke with Representatives David Leitch and Aaron Schock regarding their introducing legislation to change the Illinois Election Code to allow central counting in elections where ​fractional cumulative voting was utilized.  Mr. Day said they both indicated they would be willing to submit legislation, but were doubtful that any legislation would be passed this year.  Vice Chairman Harkrad​er said that she talked to Senator Shadid, but since he was retiring he forwarded the information to Senator Deanna Demuzio.  Ms. Harkrader said that she also faxed the information to Representative Mike Smith.  She felt that if more people ​were contacted and informed on the issue, the legislation would have a better chance to be introduced and passed in the fall veto session.  Ms. Mitzelfelt stated that Attorney Day recommended a meeting be scheduled with Dianne Felts of the State Board of Elections and a Hart representative to discuss provisions in the Illinois Election Code which, in his opinion, may allow the central counting of ballots for cumulative elections.  Secretary Gibson made a motion that Attorney Day contact Dianne Felts to request a letter which stated that there were not any other voting systems certified in Illinois that could count cumulative votes.  Seconded by Vice-Chairman Harkrader. Motion passed unanimously. 
Executive Director Mitzelfelt reported that a Hart Representative had conducted a training session during the previous week on the Ballot Now, BOSS, Tally, and Servo programs.  She reported that a programming issue was discovered during the BOSS software.  The Hart program would not allow for a separate “NO CANDIDATE” designation in the candidate area of the ballot.  This was not a problem for the March 2006 Election because the Republican and Democrat candidates were on separate ballots.  However, for the November 2006 Election, the Republican candidates are to be listed first on the ballot.  

1. The designation could  be placed with the instruction text box after “Vote For One.”   This would result in a “NO CANDIDATE, DEMOCRAT” to appear before a Republican candidate.  

1. The designation could be placed in the candidate text, but after the Republican candidate listed on the ballot.  Ms. Mitzelfelt said this would work well with the absentee/paper ballots, but she felt this would cause confusion on the eSlate device because the box which was highlighted for the Republican candidate would include the “No Candidate, Democrat” designation as well.  

Executive Director Mitzelfelt recommended Option 1 be implemented for this election.  A motion was made by Chairman Lawless to use Option 1 and place the “No Candidate, Democrat ” in the instruction text box after “Vote For One”  until Hart corrected the program.  Seconded by Vice Chairman Harkrader.  Motion passed unanimously.

Ms. Mitzelfelt reported that she received ballot certification from the SBE and would receive certification from the county clerk in the next few days.  She said that b​allots would be ready to be proofed during the following week.  She indicated that in the past, in addition to one Republican and one Democrat representative, a test of the tabulation software was conducted by one of the PBOE’s Commissioners​.  Ms. Mitzelfelt asked whether the Commission wished to continue this practice.   Commissioner Gibson agreed to conduct a test of the voting software.

Ms. Mitzelfelt stated that, at the request of Vice-Chairman Harkrader, she contacted Hart InterCivic regarding on-line voter registration look-up software.  Hart indicated that they were in the process of developing a voter registration package which would include an on-line look-up option.  The estimated cost of the final product was $ .75 to $1.00 per registered voter.  Vice-Chairman Harkrader suggested that Ms. Mitzelfelt contact other jurisdictions regarding other types of on-line voter registration look-up software being used.   

EARLY VOTING 

Executive Director Mitzelfelt reported that a meeting to discuss early voting was held and those in attendance were William Halstead, Democrat Party Chairman; Rudy Lewis, Republican Party Chairman; Thomas Bride, Peoria County Clerk Administrator, and herself.  The following locations were selected as early voting sites at the meeting: Midstate College on Northmoor Road, the former Gift Avenue Home, and the office of the PBOE.  Ms. Mitzelfelt said she mailed a letter to each party chairman confirming the agreed upon locations and hours for early voting.  She said the satellite locations would be open on Saturday’s, but the PBOE office would not be opened on Saturday’s for early voting.  

Jackie Petty said that another location for early voting was needed to serve the citizens living in the south side.  She requested that the PBOE office be open on Saturday’s for early voting.  After discussion, a motion was made by Vice-Chairman Harkrader that the PBOE office be open from 9:00 a.m. until noon on Saturday’s (October 21st and 28th) during the early voting period.  Seconded by Secretary Gibson.  Motion passed unanimously. 

Ms. Mitzelfelt said that a flyer would be mailed to the households of all registered voters to inform them of the dates, times, and locations for early voting.  

OTHER BUSINESS

Polling Place Accessibility - Executive Director Mitzelfelt reported that copies of the surveys from the Accessibility Study had been mailed to each polling place facility.  Assistant Executive Director Kelley stated that she talked to Mr. Barber at Roosevelt School regarding the possibility of adding a ramp to the entrance of the polling place to make it more accessible to disabled individuals.  She also informed him that grant money would be available to help cover the cost.  Mr. Barber said he would contact District 150 Buildings & Grounds Office to determine what could be done.  After discussing other locations, Jackie Petty and Helen King said they would investigate Blaine Sumner School (corner of Blaine and Ann) regarding its availability for use as polling place location.  

Political Activity - Chairman Lawless said that the PBOE had an unwritten rule that the Commissioner’s would not be involved or engage in political activity on behalf of any candidate.  He said that the Illinois Election Code prohibits the Chicago Board of Election Commissioners from engaging in political activity and that the PBOE Commissioner’s had adopted that rule.  Secretary Gibson asked for more clarification.  Mr. Lawless said that attendance at a political picnic was allowed, but he had always refrained from the placement of candidate signs in his  yard or the endorseme​nt of any candidates.  Vice-Chairman Harkrader said that was something she wanted to think about.  Chairman Lawless stated that he still intended to follow this rule.  He requested that this item be added to the agenda for the next meeting.

COMMISSION MEETING

The October 2006 Commission meeting was scheduled to be held at 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 4, 2006.  ​  
ADJOURNMENT
Upon motion of Secretary Gibson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Harkrader, the meeting was adjourned at 5:05 p.m.  

_____________________________________

_____________________________________

_____________________________________

PAGE  
1

